ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPCORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 24, 2011
1:12 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Representative Lance Pruitt, Vice Chair
Representative Eric Feige

Representati ve Craig Johnson
Representati ve Cat hy Engstrom Munoz
Representati ve Pete Petersen

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Max G uenberg
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BILL NO 64
"An Act relating to permanent notor vehicle registration; and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD; ASSI GNED TO SUBCOW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 10
"An Act relating to the registration fee for noncomerci al
trailers and to the notor vehicle tax for trailers.”

- HEARD & HELD; ASSI GNED TO SUBCOW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 4
Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
creating a transportation infrastructure fund.

- HEARI NG CANCELED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 30

“"An Act relating to the transportation infrastructure fund, to
| ocal public transportation, to the nmunicipal harbor facility
grant fund, to notor fuel taxes, to the notor vehicle
registration fee, to driver's license fees, to identification
card fees, to the studded tire tax, and to the vehicle rental
tax; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARI NG CANCELED

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- February 24, 2011



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 64
SHORT TI TLE: PERMANENT MOTCOR VEHI CLE REG STRATI ON
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) STOLTZE, KELLER

01/18/11 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11
01/18/11 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/18/ 11 (H STA, FIN

02/ 10/ 11 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 10/ 11 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 10/ 11 (H M NUTE( STA)

02/ 11/ 11 (H) STA RPT 2DP 2NR 3AM

02/ 11/ 11 (H DP: KELLER, LYNN

02/ 11/ 11 (H NR:  JOHANSEN, GRUENBERG

02/ 11/ 11 (H) AM  P. WLSON, SEATON, PETERSEN
02/ 11/ 11 (H TRA REFERRAL ADDED AFTER STA
02/ 24/ 11 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 10

SHORT TI TLE: NONCOMVERCI AL TRAI LER REG STRATI ON FEE
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) STOLTZE, KELLER

01/ 18/ 11 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 11

01/ 18/ 11 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 11 (H) TRA, FIN

02/ 10/ 11 (H) TRA AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 10/ 11 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 10/ 11 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

02/ 24/ 11 (H) TRA AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REGQ STER

DARRELL BREESE, St aff

Representative Bill Stoltze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 64 on behalf of one of the
prime sponsors of the bill, Representative Bill Stoltze.

VH TNEY BREWSTER, Director

Di vi si on of Mdtor Vehicles (DW)

Depart ment of Adm nistration (DOA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions on HB 64.

TONYA M LLER, City of Unal aska

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- February 24, 2011



Unal aska, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 64.

RI CK G FFORD, Manager

Kodi ak | sl and Borough (KIB)

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 64.

JAM E SUNDERLAND, Public Safety Director
City of Unal aska. Unal aska, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 64.

DARRELL BREESE, Staff

Representative Bill Stoltze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 10 on behalf of one of the
pri me sponsors, Representative Bill Stoltze.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1:12: 05 PM

CHAIR PEGGY WLSON called the House Transportation Standing
Conmittee neeting to order at 1:12 p.m Representatives P.
Wl son, Feige, Pruitt, Petersen, and Johnson were present at the
call to order. Representati ve Gruenberg arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 64- PERVANENT MOTOR VEHI CLE REG STRATI ON

1: 13: 04 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 64, "An Act relating to permanent notor
vehicle registration; and providing for an effective date."

1:13: 28 PM

DARRELL BREESE, Staff, Representative Bill Stoltze, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, on behal f of one  of the prinme sponsors,
Representative Bill Stoltze, related that HB 64 would offer a
permanent notor vehicle registration to vehicles that are eight
years old or older. The reason for the bill is to make process
nore user friendly since older vehicles tend to be used Iess
frequently. He recalled that sone people use their ol der

pi ckups for snowplowi ng or other activities such as dunp runs.
He offered his belief that to reregister the older vehicle each

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- February 24, 2011



two years is burdensone. The goal is to create an option for
owners to permanently register their eight years or ol der
vehicles. He related that if a vehicle is sold the new owner is
required to register the vehicle again. The bienni al
registration would still be an option for the owner. Sone
issues arose in hearings held by the prior commttee wth
respect to how the nmotor vehicle tax change would affect
muni ci palities. He said he hopes to renmedy any issues with HB
64 in a future conmmttee substitute for the bill. In response
to Chair P. WIson, he explained the proposed conmttee
substitute is not yet ready.

1:16: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PRUI TT asked whether the potential exists for the
state to increase revenues for notor vehicle registration fees.
He said after a few years an owner could pay for the permanent
registration and later sell the vehicle. The new owner would
regi ster the vehicle which could generate nore revenue.

MR. BREESE answered no, not as HB 64 is currently witten since

the proposed notor vehicle registration fee in the bill is set
at five tinmes the normal notor vehicle registration fee or $100,
whi chever is |ess. Under current Jlaw, the notor vehicle

biennial registration fee is set at $100. He said the sponsor
antici pated sone debate to determine if the $100 fee was a fair

rate. He was uncertain as to the best rate to charge for
trailers. He welconed nore people being involved at the
committee level. He agreed if the rate increases it is possible
state to revenues collected to also increase, at |east
initially. He related a scenario in which the notor vehicle
registration fees were be increased by five tinmes the current
f ee. He assunmed half of vehicles would be registered in year
one and the other half in year two. In year three, the
permanently registered vehicle owners would not pay any
addi tional fees. In that scenario, sone revenue would be | ost

in year three and subsequent years, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT related his understanding that the anobunt
of revenue lost would be alnpbst a wash since the owner would
prepay the entire fee. The anmount would potentially be the sane
over the course of tinme, he stated.

MR. BREESE agr eed. He used his previous scenario, and stated
that if fees are set at five tinmes the registration fee, the
owner would essentially pay for ten years of biennial
registration fees for his/her vehicle. He suggested that using

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- February 24, 2011



the state's budget process, the state would not consider revenue
in year one and two to be projected in years three and four.
Therefore, it would appear as a reduction in years three through
five.

1: 20: 02 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON referred to page 2, lines 8-10 of HB 64. She
stated that an owner of a permanently registered notor vehicle
is not required to pay other fees or taxes under this chapter.
She pointed out that many nunicipalities charge fees for vehicle
registration and expressed her concern since she was uncertain
of the fees.

MR. BREESE responded that 16 comrunities, including Anchorage,
Bet hel , Bri st ol Bay, Cor dova, D |'1'i ngham Juneau, Kenai ,
Ket chi kan, Kodi ak, Matanuska-Susitna, Nenana, Nonme, Petersburg
Sitka, Unal aska, and Whittier have enacted ordi nances to coll ect
addi ti onal fees.

CHAIR P. WLSON referred to the handout in nenbers' packets and

read the anticipated lost revenue by conmunities, including
| osses for the Matanuska-Susitna at $4 nillion, Anchorage at
$5.3, Kenai at $1.5 mllion, and for the overall total |ost

revenue anticipated at $12.3 million.

1:21:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT asked whet her the figures were correct.

MR. BREESE answered yes.

1:22: 06 PM

VWH TNEY BREWSTER, Director, Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
Department of Administration (DOA), introduced herself and

stated she was avail abl e to answered questi ons.

CHAIR P. WLSON recalled an attorney general's opinion on the
about municipality taxes on permanent vehicle registration fees.

M5. BREWSTER expl ained that the Departnent of Law advises that
to review HB 64 to determ ne whether nunicipalities could rather
than the DWw. She stated that nunicipalities would not have
that ability under the current statute and structure.

1: 23: 24 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- February 24, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON poi nt ed out t he $12 mllion
muni ci palities would lose is $12 mllion that would go into
Al askans' pockets. He stated it is not like it is vanishing or
di sappeari ng.

1: 23: 52 PM

TONYA MLLER, Gty of Unalaska, explained that the City of
Unal aska just inplenmented a $100 biennial fee for junked vehicle

di sposal . She explained that the Gty of Unalaska has just
i npl enented the law so the city has limted data on how much
revenue would be |[ost. She offered that the city received

$3,330 in one nonth. She anticipated the total loss of $30 to
$50 thousand per year. She advised nenbers that the Gty of
Unal aska has had an issue with junked vehicles, that it decided
to provide a local renedy and thereby instituted the additiona
$100 biennial fee. She concluded that renoving the notor
vehicle fees as proposed in HB 64 would be detrinmental to the
City of Unal aska.

1:25:11 PM

RI CK G FFORD, WManager, Kodiak Island Borough (KIB), related his
understanding that the KIB receives an additional $283,000 in
fees for the vehicle registration fees it collects. The KIB
uses is fees to help fund schools but also remts $100, 000
towards recycling junked and abandoned vehicles, nostly ol der
vehicles that are left behind after the fishing season by
fishermen and cannery workers. He said a 63 percent reduction
woul d be approximately $178,000 per year. The figure considers
the fees collected in the first two years, but he thought it was
possible the KIB would | ose the entire $283,000. He said he was
uncertain. However, either way the loss of revenue would
represent a significant amount for the KIB. He reported that it
costs the city from $400 to $1,000 per vehicle to ship the
vehicles off the island in order to recycle them

1:27:14 PM

MR G FFORD explained that if an owner was responsible and
recycled the vehicle rather than junking, that would be great.
Unfortunately, many do not do so. He further explained that the
owner currently only pays $100 in vehicle registration fees.
Since owners are not willing to ship their vehicles off the
island the vehicles remain behind and the KIB is forced to
remove them He recalled the DW may have previously had a fund

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- February 24, 2011



designated for use for the purpose of disposing of junked or
abandoned vehicles, but he was uncertain. He commented that he
has discussed this issue with nmany other conmunities. He al so
cormented that this issue is also a state issue as well since
some of the vehicles are left on state roads or right-of-way.
He expressed concern that HB 64 wuld reduce the Cty of
Unal aska and other mnunicipalities' ability to address junked or
abandoned vehi cl e.

1: 28: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked whether a lifetine registration on
vehi cles eight years old or ol der would encourage people to keep
vehi cl es | onger or would add to junked vehicl es.

MR. G FFORD said he was uncertain. He said a cost is involved,
whether the <cost 1is incurred by the nunicipality or the
i ndi vi dual .

1: 29: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether it is illegal to abandon a
vehi cl e.

MR. d FFORD answered yes. He indicated that owners often do not
keep up the registration, but may give to a friend and the title
is not transferred and then they |eave the island. It is
difficult to find themor enforce the | aw

1: 30: 40 PM

JAM E SUNDERLAND, Public Safety Director, stated that his
departnment has the responsibility for junked or abandoned

vehi cl es. He related he has an enployee, the DW enployee in
Unal aska, who works for him at the satellite office. Thi s
office is funded through comm ssion fees from DW. He also
stated that lifetine registration may inpact the conm ssion fees
since the city would have fewer customners. He highlighted his
primary concern is to address junked vehicles in a renote
comunity. He stated that the shipping fee for vehicles is

quite high. The cheapest way to ship a vehicle out of Unal aska
to the mainland is via the Al aska Marine H ghway System (AVHS).
The cost to ship a vehicle costs about $1,000 to/from Unal aska.
Vehicles are typically older vehicles and many owners are
transient workers from out of state or out of country so
collecting the fee is inpossible. The City of Unalaska has
instituted its $200 biennial tax to collect a fund for disposing

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- February 24, 2011



of junked or abandoned vehicles. The city nmust drain the fluids
and renove the tires prior to shipping. He said it seens |ike
the junked car would have a value but it has not had a resale
value in his experience so it can be quite expensive to dispose
of the vehicle. He expressed concern that if HB 64 was anended
to allow the nunicipality to collect the tax outside of the
permanent registration, it may also prove difficult. In those
instances the municipality would need to create a separate
registration system locally for a vehicle, perhaps by using a
wi ndow tag. The comunity woul d al so need to develop a neans to
collect and enforce the tax. He concluded, "W see that as
potentially difficult."

1: 34: 02 PM

MR. BREESE asked whether he was referring to the Mtor Vehicle
Regi stration Tax (MRT) or another tax.

MR. SUNDERLAND answered that this tax is collected through the
MRT. The City of Unalaska set the revenue aside in a special
fund to be used for disposal of junked vehicles. He reiterated
that the tax is collected by the DW as a MVRT. |In response to
Chair WIson, M. Sunderland explained the MVRT is the state
Mot or Vehicle Registration Tax. He offered that in the event an
owner paid $100 to register the vehicle, the owner would pay an
additional tax at the time to the municipality. The DW woul d
return this fee to the community approximately six weeks |ater.

1: 35: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNCQZ asked for the percentage that is returned
to conmunities.

MR. SUNDERLAND responded that the DW retains eight percent as a
collection fee. In response to Chair WIson, he repeated that
the DW retains eight percent of the registration tax.

1: 36: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ asked whether 92 percent of the one-tine
fee, once instituted, would be returned to nunicipalities.

MR. BREESE answered that the 92 percent of the one-tinme fee for
the MWRT wuld be reinbursed to nunicipalities, but the
registration fee is retained by the DW. In further response to
Representative Mnoz, he explained that the way HB 64 is
currently witten, the owner would be charged $100 for vehicle

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- February 24, 2011



regi stration fee, plus an additional $100 for the nunicipal tax.
He reiterated the fees for the permanent registration proposed
in HB 64 is based on five tinmes the current biennial
regi stration tax.

1: 36: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked whet her the bill is also
designating how nmuch tax local nunicipalities can charge owners
for vehicles.

MR. BREESE answered yes. HE said HB 64 would limt the MRT
muni ci palities can collect. He suggested a sinple solution
exi sts, which he woul d be happy to share.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether the suggested changes w |
be incorporated into the forthcom ng commttee substitute.

MR. BREESE stated that the sponsor is currently working on
changes that would be incorporated into a commttee substitute
to present to the commttee at a future date. In further
response to Representative Johnson, M. Breeze anticipated a
committee substitute would be prepared for the next conmittee
nmeet i ng.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON suggested that if substantive changes
will be nade to HB 64, the commttee could adopt the proposed
commttee substitute (CS) and address the changes at that tine.

CHAIR P. WLSON indicated that a CS is not yet prepared.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said he agreed wth Representative
Johnson.

1: 38: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNCOZ agreed al so. She asked whether a future CS
will contenplate returning a portion of the registration fees to
comunities, as well.

MR. BREESE answered that the current statute does not return
registration fees to nunicipalities for any vehicle fees
col | ect ed. The only portion returned to municipalities by the
DW is the WRT. He referred to two nethods to return the fees,
one is by wusing a set chart, and the other nethod allows
muni ci palities to set their own tax, which many nunicipalities

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 9- February 24, 2011



have al ready done. He clarified that this is not referenced in
HB 64 in its current form

1: 39: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ hoped any proposed CS would consider ways
to lessen the inpact to nunicipalities. She said she supports
the intent to help Al askan consuners, but she expressed concern
about the inpact. She pointed out that Juneau would face a $500
t housand i npact, which is a big inpact for a community.

1: 40: 08 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON related that she requested sonme additional work
on the bill.

MR. BREESE offered to share recommendati ons nmade by the DW.
CHAIR P. WLSON stated she woul d | eave public testinony open

[HB 64 was held over and assigned to a subcommttee chaired by
Representative Petersen. Commttee mnmenbers assigned to the
subcommittee are Representatives Pruitt, Minoz, and G uenberg].

HB 10- NONCOVMERCI AL TRAI LER REG STRATI ON FEE

1:41: 23 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 10, "An Act relating to the registration fee
for noncommercial trailers and to the notor vehicle tax for
trailers.”

1: 41: 44 PM

DARRELL BREESE, Staff, Representative Bill Stoltze, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, on behal f of one  of the prime sponsors,
Representative Bill Stoltze, summarized that HB 10 would allow
per manent registration for noncommercial trailers. The primary
goal of HB 10 is to bring the noncommercial trailer registration
in line wth comercial trailer registration. Currently,
comer ci al trailers can register by paying a pernmanent
registration fee. Noncomrercial trailer owners pay a $30
biennial fee or can opt to pay a one-tinme registration fee of
$100 for noncomercial trailers. This bill would allow owners
of snow machi nes, boats, and |awnnowers the sane advantage as
comercial trailer owners.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- February 24, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE PRUI TT asked for clarification on the $25 fee.

MR. BREESE agreed the fee to register a comrercial trailer is
$25. In further response to Representative Pruitt, he referred
to page 2, line 3 of HB 10, which Kkeeps the biennia
registration fee for noncomercial trailers at $30 or allows
them to pay a one-tine registration fee for noncomrercial
trailers at $100.

1:44: 04 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON agreed the commttee has raised legitimte
concerns on these two bills. She assigned HB 10 and HB 64 to a
subcommttee wth Representative Petersen as Chair, and
identified Representatives Pruitt, Minoz, and G uenberg to serve
on the subcomm ttee.

1:45: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked for clarification on HB 10, as to
whet her the trailer could be any age.

MR. BREESE agr eed.

[HB 10 was hel d over. ]

1:46: 33 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Transportation Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 1:46
p. m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- February 24, 2011



